ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 2, 2008
3:07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

VMEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Jay Ranras
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 383
"An Act establishing an exenption from the dentist |icensing
exam for certain persons.”
- MOVED CSHB 383(L&C) OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 383

SHORT TI TLE: DENTI ST LI CENSE EXAM EXCEPTI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

02/ 19/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H M.V, L&C

03/ 18/ 08 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 18/ 08 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 25/ 08 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 25/ 08 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 25/ 08 (H M NUTE( MLV)

03/ 26/ 08 (H M.V RPT 4DP 1NR

03/ 26/ 08 (H DP: LEDOUX, DAHLSTROM RAMRAS, ROSES
03/ 26/ 08 (H NR:  KAWASAKI

04/ 02/ 08 (H L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

KAREN LI DSTER, St aff

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2008



to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 383 on behalf of the bill’s
sponsor, Representative John Coghill.

DAVID L. ElICHLER, DMD
North Pol e, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 383.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KURT COLSON called the House Labor and Commrerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:07:08 PM Representatives Buch,
Gardner, LeDoux, Neuman, and O son were present at the call to
or der. Representative Gatto arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 383- DENTI ST LI CENSE EXAM EXCEPTI ON

3:07:21 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 383, "An Act establishing an exenption from the
dentist licensing examfor certain persons.”

3:07:28 PM

KAREN LIDSTER, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that that Dr. Eichler is one of
Representative Coghill’s constituents. Dr. Eichler also serves

as the Chair of the Board of Dental Exam ners (BDE), she noted.
Dr. Eichler requested a statutory change that would allow the
state to capture the talent and expertise of mlitary dentists
who serve in conmand supervisory positions. This bill would
allow mlitary dentists who serve in full-time supervisory
positions an exenption to the licensure requirenment of actively
practicing for 20 hours per week. She stated that the Al aska
Dent al Society and the Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent support HB 383.

3:08: 54 PM

M5. LIDSTER, in response to Chair O son, noted that there has
not been any opposition to HB 383.

3:09: 04 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH of fered his understanding that the Chair of
the Board of Dental Exam ners supports the bill, but that the
board as a whol e has not endorsed HB 383 because the BDE has not
held a nmeeting since HB 383 was introduced. He inquired as to
t he how often the BDE neets.

M5. LI DSTER said she was not sure.
3:09: 48 PM

DAVID L. EICHLER, DMD, in response to Representative Buch,
stated that the BDE neets quarterly and last met on February 7-
8, 2008. In response to Representative Buch, Dr. Eichler noted
that the BDE will hold its next neeting on June 27, 2008. He
expl ai ned that he personally contacted Representative Coghill to
request a statutory change to assist mlitary dentists serving
in Alaska to obtain licensure in the state. He stated that HB
383 was introduced shortly after the BDE nmet in February 2008

He stated that he notified other BDE nenbers about HB 383, but
that he has not yet received any coments on the bill.

3:11: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN i nquired as to whether HB 383 woul d affect
dental businesses in the state.

DR. EICHLER stated that he did not think that HB 383 would
affect dental practices since the bill would probably affect
only a few mlitary dentists. He opined that wusually high
ranki ng officers such as a Lieutenant Colonel or a Col onel would
be the dentists affected by HB 383. He offered that typically,
these mlitary officers are conmanders who do not practice

dentistry clinically. | nst ead, the commanders  oversee
adm nistrative duties to ensure that the dental needs of the
mlitary are net. Thus, these dentists don't neet 20 hours of
weekly clinical practice required by the state’'s licensure by
credential statutes. He characterized this matter as nerely an
oversight to the dental practices statutes. In further response
to Representative Neuman, Dr. Eichler explained that he does not
think the bill would affect practicing dentists.

3:13:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH inquired as to whether HB 383 would reduce
or dimnish patient care by licensing dentists serving in the
mlitary that may not have practiced clinically for a nunber of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2008



years. He opined these dentists probably have not nmet any
ongoi ng conti nui ng educati on requirenents.

DR. EICHLER opined that he did not think Ilicensing dentists

under HB 383 will cause a problemw th the |evel of care offered
to patients. Al though he said he could not be absolutely
certain, several factors nitigate any conpetency problens. The

dentists who would be affected by HB 383 would have practiced
dentistry for a minimum of 20 years in clinical practice prior
to being pronoted to command positions, he noted. Secondly, the
mlitary has far and away nore continuing education requirenents
than the state requires, he asserted. These dentists serve in a
group setting in which their practices are observed by many
peopl e and are pronoted based on their abilities, he surm sed

Further, if the dental mlitary conmanders felt their ability to
practice dentistry was not up to standards, these dentists would
be notivated to seek additional continuing education to elevate
their skill levels.

3:16: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX referred to page 2, Ilines 14-15, and
inquired as to whether the dentist wuld be required to
specifically supervise other dentists or if the mlitary denti st
could be engaged in any supervisory position and still qualify
for licensure.

DR. EICHLER answered that he assunes that since HB 383 only
affects the dental practices statutes, the commander would be
supervi sing other denti sts.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX expressed concern that a dentist serving
in the mlitary may be working in a supervisory capacity that
has nothing to do with dentistry. She suggested that HB 383
m ght need to be tightened up to ensure that the bill is limted
to mlitary dentists who are supervising other dentists.

DR, EICHLER agreed that HB 383 should only apply to dentists
supervi sing other dentists. He pointed out that the intention
of HB 383 is to correct an unforeseen oversight that excludes
mlitary dentists fromlicensure in the state.

3:18:12 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER echoed Representative LeDoux's concern

She related her understanding that the dentists serving in the
mlitary would nost |ikely have 20 years of clinical practice,

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2008



have achieved the rank of Col onel or Lieutenant Colonel, and are
supervi sors. She surm sed that these mlitary commanders woul d
not likely have practiced dentistry for 5 to 10 years and
inquired as to whether such dentists would be conpetent since
they are not required to pass any exam nation in Alaska prior to
i censure.

DR. ElI CHLER acknow edged the concern, but argued that currently

a dentist licensed in Alaska may renew his/her license wthout
proof of «clinical practice since proof of practice is not
required as a condition of |icense renewal. He expl ai ned that

he does not share Representative Gardner’s concern because he is
confident that anyone who has reached the status these mlitary
officers have achieved is conpetent clinically and ethically.
He stated that the dentists in question would ensure their
skills are not just adequate, but are exenplary.

3:20:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO echoed simlar thoughts as Dr. Eichler
about the mlitary comranders. He then referred to Section 1,
which reads, “(a) the board shall provide for the Iicensing

wi thout exam nation, except as provided in (2) of this
subsection, of a dentist who (1) provides certification to the
board that ...~ He pointed out that this statute further
requires under subsections (a)-(d), that the dentist is a
graduate of a dental school, has passed the clinical and witten

exam nations required for licensure in another state, and is in
good standing with the licensing entity in the jurisdiction
where the dentist is currently licensed. He expressed concern

that a dentist serving in the mlitary may not be actively
practicing dentistry while on active duty as the dentist m ght
be assigned to sonme other duty. He opined that the denti st
shoul d submt to continuing education prior to |licensure.

DR. EICHLER reiterated his earlier testinony such that any
dentist licensed in Alaska is not required to practice dentistry
to maintain his/her dental license. He asserted that he did not
think conpetency in clinical practice would be an issue for the
dentists affected under HB 383.

3:22:36 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX suggested that conpetency m ght be |ess of
an issue since the dentists that would be affected by HB 383 are

dentists who are currently licensed in another jurisdiction and
must be in good standing in the state of original |icensure.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2008



DR EICHLER agreed that the mlitary dentists seeking licensure
woul d be licensed wi thout further exam nation since they nust be
currently licensed in another jurisdiction [as a condition of
i censure by credenti al s]. In further response to
Representative LeDoux, Dr. Eichler agreed that the dentist
serving in the mlitary applying for licensure in Alaska is
currently Jlicensed in another jurisdiction and nust also
denonstrate 42 hours of continuing education in the three years
prior to licensure. He rem nded nenbers that the only licensure
requi rement being waived is the requirenent that the dentist be
engaged in continuous active clinical practice averaging at
| east 20 hours a week.

3:24:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to whether Alaska offers
reciprocity for dental |icenses fromother jurisdictions.

DR. EICHLER answered that the Ilicensure is not considered
reciprocity. He explained that the state has |icensure by
credentials for dentists who hold a |license in another

jurisdiction. He pointed out that the statutes affected by HB
383 are statutes that solely apply to dentists already |icensed
in another jurisdiction. In further response to Representative
Gardner, Dr. Eichler reiterated that the only requirenment that
woul d be wai ved under HB 383 is a provision that requires that a
denti st nust be engaged in continuous active clinical practice
averaging at |east 20 hours a week. The reason to grant the
waiver is that many dentists don't have the opportunity to
practice clinically due to the nature of their supervisory
position.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to page 2, line 8, subparagraph
(O, which reads: “is in good standing with the |Iicensing
entity in the jurisdiction where the dentist is currently
licensed ...~ She related her understanding that this neans
that the dentist is currently licensed elsewhere and wll be
allowed to use that license, essentially, to practice in Al aska.

DR, EICHLER answered that is not exactly true. He expl ai ned
that under HB 383, the dentist would be granted a license in
Al aska, but that the dentist would not be practicing under the
Iicense he holds from another jurisdiction.

3:26:51 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2008



CHAIR OLSON inquired as to whether it is a safe assunption that
the mlitary dentist would not l|ikely be actively practicing in
Al aska.

DR, EICHLER answered that it is a good possibility that the
dentist would not practice dentistry in Al aska. He pointed out
that HB 383 would allow the state to recognize the contributions
these dentists have nmade to the profession and to attract them
to remain in the state. He opined that the state has a good
reason to retain high ranking mlitary officers in the state
since the officers have a lot to offer

3:27:53 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 383.

3:28: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN echoed Dr. Eichler’s testinony that this
bill is a nmeans to help mlitary dentists gain recognition. He
related his understanding that |icensed dentists are not
required to practice dentistry [as a condition of [license

renewal ], that the mlitary dentists have a lot to offer the
state, and not enough dentists currently practice in the state.
He offered his support for HB 383.

3:29: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX agreed with the intent of HB 383, but
asked if it would help to clarify with a conceptual anmendnent
that the dentists serving in the mlitary that would be affected
by HB 383 are supervising dentists.

M5. LIDSTER referred to the proposed change on page 2, |lines 13-
16, and stated that the proposed change is for a full-tinme
supervisory position and that the statutes in question are
within the dental practices. She stated that she did not think
that the sponsor would need to clarify that the mlitary denti st
nmust be supervising other dentists.

3:30: 13 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX suggested a conceptual anendnent be nade

on page 2, line 15, after, position to insert, “full-tine
supervi sory position supervising dentists.”

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked for «clarification of whether the
conceptual anendnment woul d read “dental supervisor”

CHAI R OLSON asked for clarification if the conceptual anmendnment
woul d read: after supervisory, to add “dental.”

3:31: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested after, “full-time” to add
“dental” which would read, “full-tinme dental supervisory”.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX agreed wth Representative Gardner’s
suggesti on. She nmade a notion to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 1,
as foll ows:

On page 2, line 14,
after, “full-tine” insert, “dental”

3:31: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked for clarification of the neaning of
“full-time”. He asked whether a dentist who worked a |esser
anount such as 98 percent would qualify for licensure.

CHAI R OLSON answered that the mlitary already defines the term
“full-tinme” and he said he did not think that the term needed to
be defined in this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX speculated that a person mght work an
average of 10 hours per week performng dentistry and rest of
time the person supervised mlitary dentists.

3:33:10 PM

CHAIR OLSON rem nded nenbers that a notion was before the
comittee. He asked if there was any objection to Conceptua
Amendnent 1, which read:

On page 2, line 14,
after, “full-tine” insert, “dental”

There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.
3:33:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX restated her concern that a person m ght
work an average of 10 hours per week performng dentistry and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2008



rest of tinme the dentist would supervise other mlitary
denti sts. She inquired as to how the dentist would fit wthin
HB 383.

DR. EICHLER said he thought he could satisfy Representative
LeDoux‘s concern. He pointed out that a dentist who is in the
supervisory position could also performclinically any nunber of

hours per week. Some dentists mght perform 20 hours of
dentistry per week, but still function as full-time dental
supervi sors. O her dentists in those capacities don't practice
any clinical dentistry at all, he noted.

3:35: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER related her wunderstanding that HB 383
will only affect a few mlitary dentists, but noted that sone
mlitary dentists practice dentistry. She inquired as to

whether Dr. Eichler could clarify the purpose of the bill.

DR. EICHLER related that he personally is aware of a dentist
that did not qualify for the 20 hours per week who could not

qualify for licensure in the state. “I don’t want to see one
turned away because they can’'t qualify for a license when |
think they are fully qualified, or nore than qualified,” he
sai d.

3:35: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noved to report HB 383, as anmended, out of
conmmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 383(L&0) was
reported fromthe House Labor and Commrerce Standing Comrttee.

3:36:16 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
3:36 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 2, 2008



